
SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 

South Lakeland House, Kendal, Cumbria LA9 4UQ 
www.southlakeland.gov.uk  
 
 
 

You are requested to attend a meeting of  

the Standards Committee 

on Monday, 14 March 2022, at 2.00 p.m. 

in the District Council Chamber,  Kendal Town Hall, Kendal 

 
 

Committee Membership 
 

Councillors 
 

Tom Harvey 

Chris Hogg (Chairman) 

John Holmes 

Pete McSweeney 

Matt Severn (Vice-Chairman) 

Peter Thornton 

Shirley-Anne Wilson  

 

 

Parish Members 
 

Peter Smillie   

 

 
Note – Where relevant, agendas for Members are labelled “Private Document Pack” and 
contain exempt information within the papers. Any relevant pages are marked as restricted 
within Agendas labelled “Public Document Pack”. 
 
Friday, 4 March 2022 
 
Linda Fisher, Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist (Monitoring Officer) 
 
For all enquiries, please contact:-  

Committee Administrator: Adam Moffatt 

 

Telephone: 01539 733333 

e-mail: committeeservices@southlakeland.gov.uk 

 

Public Document Pack

http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/


AGENDA 
 

 Page Nos. 

PART I   

1  APOLOGIES   

 To receive apologies for absence, if any.  

2  MINUTES  5 - 10 

 To authorise the Chairman to sign, as a correct record, the minutes of the 
meeting of the Committee held on 11 October 2021. 

 

3  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

 To receive declarations by Members of interests in respect of items on this 
Agenda.  
 
Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of Conduct, 
they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests or other 
registrable interests which have not already been declared in the Council’s 
Register of Interests.  (It is a criminal offence not to declare a disclosable 
pecuniary interest either in the Register or at the meeting.) 
 
Members may, however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and 
transparency, to declare at this point in the meeting, any such disclosable 
pecuniary interests which they have already declared in the Register, as well as 
any other registrable or other interests. 
 
If a Member requires advice on any item involving a possible declaration of 
interest which could affect his/her ability to speak and/or vote, he/she is advised 
to contact the Monitoring Officer at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 

 

4  LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS   

 To consider whether the items, if any, in Part II of the Agenda should be 
considered in the presence of the press and public. 

 

5  APPOINTMENT OF PARISH REPRESENTATIVE   

 To note that Councillor Leith Hallastch (Windermere Town Council) has been 
elected as the Chair of Cumbria Association of Local Councils (CALC) and to 
consider his nomination to the Standards Committee as Parish Council co-
optee.  For Members information, at its last meeting, the Committee noted that 
following the end of Parish Councillor David Peters’ term as the Chairman of 
CALC, the new Chair of CALC, once appointed, would be invited to join the 
Standards Committee as one of the Parish Council co-optees (and in the event 
that the Chair was unable to take up the position, an alternative Parish Council 
co-optee would be sought). 

 

6  ANNUAL REPORT 2021/2022  11 - 24 

 To consider the Annual report for 2020/2021 for a referral to Full Council.  

7  CODE OF CONDUCT COMPLAINTS  25 - 30 

 To consider the report of the Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead 
Specialist (Monitoring Officer) with regards to complaints under the Council’s 
Standards Arrangements from April 2021. 

 



8  REVIEW OF DISPENSATIONS - PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  31 - 36 

 To consider the report of the Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead 
Specialist (Monitoring Officer) with regards to Review of Dispensations 
regarding Public Participation. 

 

9  STANDARDS COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME  37 - 38 

 To consider the Committee’s Work Programme.  

10  LOCAL GOVERNMENT REORGANISATION   

 To consider any updates regarding Local Government Reorganisation (verbal 
report). 

 

PART II   

 Private Section (exempt reasons under Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972, as amended by the Local Government (Access to 
Information) (Variation) Order 2006, specified by way of paragraph 
number) 

 There are no items in this part of the agenda. 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
11.10.2021 Standards Committee 
 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
 
Minutes of the proceedings at a meeting of the Standards Committee held in the 
Assembly Room, Kendal Town Hall, on Monday, 11 October 2021, at 2.00 p.m. 
 

Present 
 

Councillors 
 

 
Chris Hogg (Chairman) 

Matt Severn (Vice-Chairman) 
 

John Holmes 
 

Peter Thornton 
 

Shirley-Anne Wilson 
 

Apologies for absence were received from District Councillor Tom Harvey and Pete 
McSweeney and Parish Member Peter Smillie. 
 

Officers 
 

Linda Fisher Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist (Monitoring Officer) 

Julia Krier Legal, Governance and Democracy Specialist 

 

S/1 MINUTES  
 
RESOLVED – That the Chairman be authorised to sign, as a correct record, the 
minutes of the meeting held on 20 April 2021. 
 

S/2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
RESOLVED – That it be noted that no declarations of interest were raised. 
 

S/3 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS  
 
RESOLVED – That it be noted that there were no excluded items on the Agenda. 
 

S/4 TERMS OF REFERENCE  
 
RESOLVED – That the Terms of Reference for the Standards Committee be noted. 
 

S/5 LOCAL GOVERNMENT OMBUDSMAN ANNUAL REVIEW, COMPLAINTS 
RECEIVED FROM APRIL 2020 TO MARCH 2021  
 
The Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist (Monitoring Officer) presented 
the report on behalf of the Operational Lead, People Welfare and Income 
Maximisation. 
  
In the discussion, Councillors raised the question of the possibility of being provided 
access to review the progress of a complaint.  The Legal, Governance and Democracy 
Lead Specialist (Monitoring Officer) stated that the progress of complaints was an 
operational matter, but that Members could ask questions if there were particular 
matters on which they required an update.  In response to a query as to whether there 
was a central point of reference to which to refer complaints, the Legal, Governance 

Page 5

Item No.2



2 
11.10.2021 Standards Committee 
 
and Democracy Lead Officer (Monitoring Officer) stated that complaints could be 
directed to the Council’s central complaints email address. 
 
During the discussion, a further query was raised with regard to the timescales within 
which complaints should be acknowledged and a response issued.  The Legal, 
Governance and Democracy Lead Officer (Monitoring Officer) stated that the Council 
aims to respond to complaints within ten working days, and to provide an 
acknowledgement within two working days of receipt of a complaint.  It was 
acknowledged by the Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead Officer (Monitoring 
Officer) that a full response was not always possible within ten working days and that in 
that event officers would seek to keep complainants updated as to the reasons for 
delay. 
 
During the discussion a query was also raised in relation to Code of Conduct 
complaints.  The Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead Officer (Monitoring Officer) 
advised that this was the subject of agenda Agenda Item No. 8. 
 
RESOLVED – That the reports be received and the recent decisions of the Local 
Government Ombudsman be noted. 
 

S/6 STANDARDS COMMITTEE - PARISH REPRESENTATIVE  
 
RESOLVED - That it be noted that, following the end of Parish Councillor David Peters’ 
term as the Chairman of the Cumbria Association of Local Councils to the Standards 
Committee, the new Chair, once appointed, will be invited to join the Standards 
Committee as one of the parish council co-optees (in the event that the Chair is unable 
to take up the position, an alternative parish council co-optee will be sought). 
 

S/7 CODE OF CONDUCT COMPLAINTS  
 
The Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist (Monitoring Officer) presented 
the report and responded to comments with regard to delays responding to complaints.  
The Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist (Monitoring Officer) stated that 
in relation to a number of (related) complaints it had been necessary to seek further 
clarification from the complainants with regard to the specific breaches of the Code of 
Conduct alleged.  Upon receipt of that further information, the subjects of the 
complaints had been asked to comment within a specified timescale upon the 
complaints. The Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist (Monitoring 
Officer) advised that once the responses had been received, she would be arranging to 
meet with the Independent Person regarding the complaints.  It was noted that the 
complainants had been notified of the process accordingly.  In relation to another 
outstanding matter, the Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist (Monitoring 
Officer) explained that in relation to that particular matter there had been two parts to 
the complaint and delays had arisen because the second limb of the complaint required 
further clarification. 
 
The Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist (Monitoring Officer) noted that 
some of the complaints received concerned Parish Council processes and meetings 
and were not necessarily Code of Conduct complaints.  Councillors queried whether a 
revised ‘traffic light’ process would assist with dealing with these complaints but it was 
felt that the current level of complaints did not merit a change in approach.   The Legal, 
Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist (Monitoring Officer) highlighted that it was 
a matter for the complainants in each case to substantiate their complaints and that the 

Page 6



3 
11.10.2021 Standards Committee 
 
timescales for dealing with these complaints would only commence from the date at 
which the breaches were properly outlined and identified by the complainants. 
 
During the discussion, Councillors were pleased to note so few Code of Conduct 
complaints regarding District Councillors. 
 
RESOLVED – That the report be noted. 
 

S/8 DISTRICT REGISTER OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY AND OTHER 
REGISTRABLE INTERESTS  
 
The Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist (Monitoring Officer) presented 
the report and noted that there were a number of Members who had not yet attended 
the training provided upon the new Code of Conduct. 
 
During the discussion, the Chair expressed some concern with the approach that 
Councillors who had not attended the training session would be provided with a 
recording to watch.  The Chair expressed a preference for Members to attend the 
training session, rather than listen to a recording, and an action was noted for the Chair 
to send an email to Group Leaders reminding them of the need for Members to attend 
training sessions in person / virtually and for Members to each sign and return their 
confirmation that they had read the Code of Conduct.  It was noted that the training 
was provided online live and so was very convenient to attend. 
 
RESOLVED – That 
 
(1) the review of the District register of interests be noted; and 
 
(2) through the Chair, a letter be sent to Group Leaders regarding the need for 
Members to attend the Code of Conduct training session. 
 

S/9 PARISH REGISTER OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY AND OTHER REGISTRABLE 
INTERESTS  
 
The Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist (Monitoring Officer) presented 
the report. 
 
During the discussion, it was noted by Councillors that there were a small number of 
Register of Interest forms outstanding and that a letter to the Clerks and Councillors in 
question may assist.  The Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist 
(Monitoring Officer) explained that officers do did frequently chase outstanding Register 
of Interest forms and stated that she would send a letter to the relevant Councillors 
requesting return of the Register of Interest forms. 
 
RESOLVED – That 
 
(1) the review of the Parish Register of Interests be noted; and 
 
(2) a letter be sent by the Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist 
(Monitoring Officer) to the relevant Councillors who had not yet returned their Register 
of Interest forms. 
 

Page 7



4 
11.10.2021 Standards Committee 
 

S/10 EMPLOYEE REGISTER OF INTERESTS AND GIFTS AND HOSPITALITY  
 
The Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist (Monitoring Officer) presented 
the report. 
 
The Chair queried whether there were arrangements for the reportable threshold for 
gifts to be aligned for both officers and Members.  The Legal, Governance and 
Democracy Lead Specialist (Monitoring Officer) confirmed that the thresholds had not 
yet been aligned for Members and officers but that this had been identified as an 
internal audit recommendation. 
 
RESOLVED – That the report and appendices be noted. 
 

S/11 STANDARDS COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME  
 
The Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist (Monitoring Officer) presented 
the Standards Committee’s Work Programme. 
 
It was noted by the Chair that Members were acutely aware of the time that would be 
taken up in relation to Local Government Re-organisation in Cumbria and that he would 
like this to be reflected in the Work Programme. 
 
RESOLVED - That the Standards Committee’s Work Programme be noted. 
 

S/12 SOCIAL MEDIA GUIDE FOR COUNCILLORS  
 
The Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist (Monitoring Officer) presented 
the report and noted that the Guidance was also referred to in the Code of Conduct 
training that had been offered to all Members. 
 
There was general discussion by Members regarding online communications and it 
was suggested that Councillors needed to be mindful of different forms of 
communication online.  In the course of the discussion it was noted that the Chair 
would send an email to remind Members about the Social Media Guidance. 
 
RESOLVED - That 
 
(1) the Social Media Guide for Councillors be noted; and 
 
(2) a reminder be sent through the Chair to all Members regarding the guidance in 
relation to social media. 
 

S/13 LOCAL GOVERNMENT REORGANISATION  
 
The Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist (Monitoring Officer) provided a 
verbal update in relation to Local Government Re-organisation (‘LGR’).  The Legal, 
Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist (Monitoring Officer) explained that 
Cumbria Monitoring Officers were meeting regularly and work streams had 
commenced in relation to governance and legal matters.  The Standards regime and 
Code of Conduct for the new unitary authority would be matters to be considered by 
the Shadow Authority in due course. 
 
RESOLVED – That the verbal update be noted. 
 

Page 8



5 
11.10.2021 Standards Committee 
 

S/14 DISPENSATIONS  
 
The Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist (Monitoring Officer) provided a 
verbal update in relation to requests, if any received, for dispensations. 
 
It was noted by the Legal Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist (Monitoring 
Officer) that one request had been received from a Parish Council in relation to advice 
regarding Parish Council dispensations.  The Legal Governance and Democracy Lead 
Specialist (Monitoring Officer) noted that Parish Councils were responsible for 
determining requests for a dispensation by a Parish Councillor under Section 33 of the 
Localism Act 2011.  A more detailed report on dispensations would be brought to a 
future meeting. 
 
RESOLVED – That the verbal update be noted. 
 
 
 
 
 
The meeting ended at 3.23 p.m. 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



South Lakeland District Council 

Standards Committee 

Monday, 14 March 2022 

Annual Report 2021/2022 

 

Portfolio:   Finance and Resources Portfolio Holder 

Report from:  Monitoring Officer 

Report Author: Linda Fisher – Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist 
(Monitoring Officer) 

Wards:  (All Wards); 

Forward Plan: N/A 

Links to Council Plan Priorities: N/A 

 

1.0 Expected Outcome and Measures of Success 

1.1 That the Committee considers the Annual report for 2021/2022 for a referral to Full 
Council 

2.0 Recommendation 

2.1 It is recommended that the committee consider its draft Annual Report 2021/2022 for 
referral to Full Council 

3.0 Background and Proposals 

3.1 The draft Annual Report, attached at Appendix 1, details the work of the Committee 
and the operation of the Council’s Standards Arrangements over the last 12 months. 

3.2  To date complaints under the Council’s Standards Arrangements have been 
considered under the delegated powers of the Monitoring Officer, and there have been 
no referrals to the Standards Committee. The Council’s Standards Arrangements and 
terms of reference for the Committee can be found at 
https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/your-council/councillors-and-
decisions/codeofconduct.and-standards/standards-regime/standards-committee/ 

 3.3  Members are requested to consider the Annual Report 2021/22 for referral to Council. 
Minor amendments will be made, in consultation with the Chairman of the Committee, 
before it is finalised for Council to reflect decisions arising from this agenda.  

 

4.0 Appendices Attached to this Report 

Appendix No. Name of Appendix 

1 Draft Annual Report  

5.0 Consultation 

5.1 Not applicable- the Committee is requested to consider its Annual Report and to 
provide comments as it feels appropriate.  

Page 11

Item No.6

https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/your-council/councillors-and-decisions/codeofconduct.and-standards/standards-regime/standards-committee/
https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/your-council/councillors-and-decisions/codeofconduct.and-standards/standards-regime/standards-committee/


6.0 Alternative Options 

6.1 The report is to consider and comment 

7.0 Implications 

Financial, Resources and Procurement 

7.1 There are no finance or resource implications arising from this report. 

Human Resources 

7.2 Not applicable. 

Legal 

7.3 There are no legal implications arising from this report. 

Health and Sustainability Impact Assessment 

7.4 Have you completed a Health and Sustainability Impact Assessment?  No  

7.5 If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: 
There are no issues arising from the report. 

7.6 Summary of Health and Sustainability Impacts 

 Positive Neutral Negative Unknown 

Environment 
and Health 

Greenhouse gases 
emissions 

 X   

 Air Quality  X   

 Biodiversity  X   

 Impacts of Climate 
Change 

 X   

 Reduced or zero 
requirement for energy, 
building space, materials 
or travel 

 X   

 Active Travel  X   

Economy and 
Culture 

Inclusive and sustainable 
development 

 X   

 Jobs and levels of pay  X   

 Healthier high streets  X   

 Culture, creativity and 
heritage 

 X   

Housing and 
Communities 

Standard of housing  X   

 Access to housing  X   

 Crime  X   

 Social connectedness  X   

Equality and Diversity 

7.7 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis?  No   

Page 12



7.8 If you have not completed an Impact Analysis, please explain your reasons: There 
are no issues arising from the report. 

7.9 Summary of Equality and Diversity impacts 

Please indicate: P = Positive impact; 0 = Neutral; N = Negative; Enter “X” 

Age P  0 X N  

Disability P  0 X N  

Gender reassignment (transgender) P  0 X N  

Marriage & civil partnership P  0 X N  

Pregnancy & maternity P  0 X N  

Race/ethnicity P  0 X N  

Religion or belief P  0 X N  

Sex/gender P  0 X N  

Sexual orientation P  0 X N  

Armed forces families P  0 X N  

Rurality P  0 X N  

Socio-economic disadvantage P  0 X N  

 

Risk Management Consequence Controls required 

That the Council is failing in its 

standards arrangements 

Poor standards of 

behaviour 

Monitor and review 

arrangements on a regular 

basis. 

Contact Officers 

linda.fisher@southlakeland.gov.uk 

 

Signed off by Date sent Date Signed off 

Section 151 Officer 16/02/2022 17/02/2022 

Monitoring Officer Report Author  
 

CMT 
  

 

Circulated to Date sent 

Lead Specialist N/A 

Human Resources Lead Specialist N/A 

Communications Team N/A 

Leader N/A 

Committee Chairman 14/02/2022 

Portfolio Holder N/A 

Ward Councillor(s) N/A 

Committee N/A 

Executive (Cabinet) N/A 

Council N/A 

 

 

Page 13

mailto:linda.fisher@southlakeland.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14



Appendix 1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
page 1 

     

South Lakeland District Council 

2021/22 

Standards Committee Annual Report 

Page 15



Appendix 1 

 

Foreword from the Chairman 
 

Following on from last year COVID-19 has continued to mean that Councillors, Officers 
and our Independent  Person have had to adapt to working with virtual meetings and 
training and then returning face to face meetings. 
Virtual meetings being available to view online has of course resulted in a greater level 
of public scrutiny of councillors and a greater interest in Standards which can only be 
good for democracy. I’m sure we will continue to review the best ways to hold these 
meetings and training sessions in the future considering convenience and costs 
amongst other factors. 
 
I am glad to be able to say that the conduct of SLDC and Parish Councillors in our 
area continues to be good despite all of these changes and pressures. I would like to 
take this opportunity to thank all SLDC and Parish councillors for their adherence to 
the code of conduct and for maintaining their register of interests. When issues do 
infrequently occur I’m delighted to say they have been resolved by Officers and our 
Independent Person without need for intervention by the Standards Committee and so 
I would like to thank them for their excellent work too. 
 
I would also like to thank Vice Chairman (Cllr Matt Severn) and my fellow members of 
the Standards Committee across all parties. Our meetings are well attended with good 
debate and I appreciate the constructive way the committee works together. 
 
Finally, this will be the penultimate Annual Report of the SLDC Standards Committee 
because of the move to the Westmorland and Furness unitary council. I hope that the 
final year of the Standards committee will be a quite one whilst we work towards 
preparing for the new unitary authority, but if members of the public do have concerns 
about the behavior of Councillors then the systems are in place for these to be 
addressed. 
 

 
Councillor Chris Hogg 
Chairman of the Committee 

Page 16



Appendix 1 

 
 

 

1. Introduction – Ethical Standards 

 
 

The Council has a duty to promote and maintain high standards of conduct by Members and 
co-opted members and the Council aims to have the highest possible ethical standards in 
place across the Council. 

 

This is a report on ethical standards under the Council’s Standards Arrangements following 
implementation of the Localism Act 2011, and considers ethical standards within South 
Lakeland for the year to March 2022. 

 

2. Code of Conduct 
 
The Council’s revised Code of Conduct was first approved by Council in June 2012. The Code 
was drafted in consultation with Councils across Cumbria. The same Code was adopted by 
all principal authorities in Cumbria, and by the majority of Parish and Town Councils. 

 
In June 2013 the Committee undertook a review of the new arrangements, and recommended 
that no further changes be made to the Code at the present time other than the revision of the 
definitions for the seven general principles of public life as revised by the Committee on 
Standards in Public Life in their 14th report on “Standards Matter”. 

 
This year we were asked to respond to consultations taking place on the code of conduct and 
we provided a response as a Committee.  
 
During 2021 the Committee recommended the new Code of Conduct, adopting the Local 
Government Association model code with amendments. These recommendations were 
considered at the Full Council meeting in July 2021 and adopted by the Council.  

 

3.Role of Standards Committee/Monitoring Officer/Independent Person/ Parish 
Representatives 

 
The Council must demonstrate that it operates high standards of ethical conduct in the way it 
carries out its dealings; this applies to both Members and Officers. 

 

The main function of the Standards Committee is to promote and maintain high standards of 
conduct and it seeks to ensure that the District Council, and the Town/Parish Councils which 
operate within the District, operate within the expected ethical standards of conduct expected 
from them. 

 
The Committee fulfils this role by promoting good standards of conduct and ensuring that 
training is available on standards of conduct. It also reviews ethical matters, such as the Code 
of Conduct and revisions to/ adoption of Protocols, governing the behaviour of officers and 
elected Members. 

 
The Standards Committee is operating under its terms of reference as set out in the Council’s 
Constitution. It met on 3 occasions during this reporting year. It was agreed that we would 
have a reduced workload this year due to the Council’s necessary focus on addressing the 
Covid pandemic. 

 
The Committee also received reports on code of conduct complaints, general complaints and 
compliments and the annual report of the Local Government Ombudsman. 

Page 17



Appendix 1 

Further information about these meetings, including agendas, reports considered and minutes, 
are available on the Council’s website – Standards Committee Meetings. 

 

Monitoring Officer 
 
Linda Fisher is the Council’s Monitoring Officer (MO) and is supported in her role by the Deputy 
Monitoring Officer, Julia Krier. 

 
The role of MO is a statutory role and is required to ensure that the Council, its Members  and 
officers carry out their functions in a proper and lawful manner and to ensure that      high 
standards of conduct are promoted and maintained throughout the organisation. 

 
In particular, the MO is responsible for establishing  and  maintaining  the  register  of  District 
Councillors’ and Parish Councillors’ interests. She supports  the  Standards Committee and 
makes sure that the Council acts  within  the  law  and  ensures  the  Council’s Constitution is 
effective. 

 

Independent Person 
 
The Council has appointed David Tweddle as its Independent Person and his 
appointment runs until June 2024. 

 

The Standards Committee continues to keep the need for any reserve Independent Person 
under review and there are arrangements with neighbouring authorities to call on other 
Independent Persons if required. 

 

Parish Representatives 
 
The Committee is able to co-opt up to two parish co-optees, and currently has a  representative 
nominated by the South Lakeland District Association of Local Councils as co- opted members 
of the Committee. 
 
The Standards Committee has extended an invitation to the new Chair of the Cumbria 
Association of Local Councils (‘CALC’) to join the Standards Committee as one of the parish 
council co-optees, in accordance with the Council’s Constitution. In the event that the Chair of 
CALC is unable to take up the position, an alternative parish council co-optee will be sought. 

 

4. Overview 
 
The Committee continues to ensure that the Council has a robust mechanism in place        for 
standards  arrangements  as  well  as   reviewing   the   Code   of   Conduct   and   various 
Member/Officer protocols. In addition, there  have  been  numerous  training sessions made 
available to Councillors and co-optees as well as training  offered  to  parishes  across  the 
District. 

 
The Committee has a rolling work programme with the aim of keeping the ethical framework 
under review. 

 

Joint working continues with Cumbrian authorities and CALC to ensure consistency of 
approach on the code and practices. 

 

The number of scheduled meetings continues to be satisfactory but additional meetings could 
be called if and when required. 

Page 18

https://democracy.southlakeland.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=139


Appendix 1 

5. Complaints against Members 
 
Since 1 April 2021 to the date of this annual review, the Monitoring Officer has processed 7 
complaints in relation to Parish councillors.  
In addition there were other matters where it was considered that either the alleged 
conduct/complaint did not meet the threshold for a Code of Conduct complaint, or where no 
formal complaint was submitted and so the matters did not proceed. None of these matters 
resulted in any action being taken. No complaints have been forwarded for formal investigation 
by the Monitoring Officer. 

 

6. Registration of Interests 
 
The Members’ Register continues to be maintained and updated as and when Members notify 
changes. In addition, all Members are sent an annual reminder to update their entries and 
confirm the accuracy of the Register. The same applies to the Parish Councillors’ Register of 
Interests. 

 

All District Councillors’ interest forms are on the Council’s web page, as are all Parish and 
Town Councillor interests. Publication on the Authority’s website and on the relevant 
Parish/Town Council’s website, where they have one, is a requirement under the Localism Act 
2011. 

 

The Registers are also still available to view in hard copy. 
 
Agendas for all District Council meetings contain an item regarding the disclosure of interests 
at the meeting and advising that guidance can be sought, if necessary, from the Monitoring 
Officer prior to meetings. 

 

The Minutes of the various Council, Cabinet and Committee meetings show that interests are 
regularly declared by Members. 

 

The Parish Registers can provide a challenge in ensuring all Parish/Town Councillors have 
submitted an appropriate form. 

 
7. Other Activity 

 
Monitoring Officer advice has been given to both individual Members and corporately as 
required, and to Parish Clerks/Chairmen. Opportunities have been sought and used to deliver 
proactive advice to Members to ensure high standards and avoid possible breaches of the 
Code. The Monitoring Officer, the Deputy Monitoring Officer and other Officers are available 
to advise Members at all reasonable times. The MO has introduced a matrix of interests. 

 
 

8. Training 
 
Formal training sessions have been provided as requested for Parish/Town Clerks and their 
members, with whom liaison is maintained. The Monitoring Officer or Deputy are also available 
to visit Parish Councils to discuss the Code and registers of interests. 

 
The District Council and Cumbria Association of Councils have continued to work closely 
together around the provision of training and information to parishes. 

Page 19



Appendix 1 

 
The Monitoring Officer has provided ‘Effective Member’ training to District and Parish 
Councillors on 16 June 2021, including training regarding social media guidance  Training was 
also provided (14 September 2021) following the adoption of the new Code of Conduct.   

 
Training on Committees which have quasi-judicial roles e.g. Standards, Planning, Licensing 
and Appeals, is now required for Members serving on those Committees and is offered 
annually, either as a refresher or for new Committee Members as appropriate. 

 
Training completed: 

 

Date Training Members invited Number 
of attendees 

Number of 
apologies 

07/06/21 Making Planning 
Decisions at 
Planning 
Committee 

3 Members 
invited (2 new to 
Planning 
Committee and 1 
Member 
interested in 
Planning asked to 
attend 

3 0 

16/06/21 Code of Conduct 51 SLDC 69  PC  18 10 

29/07/21 Audit Induction 5 4 1 

14/10/20 
Nothing 
provided/required  
in 2021 

Planning 
Substitute 
Training 

1  1 0 

14/09/21 Code of 
Conduct 
Refresher 

51 SLDC 21 7 

23/11/21 Audit Induction 1-
1 session 

1 1 0 

20/07/21 HR Committee 
Appeals 
Refresher 

9 5 4 

25/10/21 HR Committee 
Appeals 
Refresher 1-1 

1 1 0 

04/11/21 Code of Conduct 
1-1 

1 1 0 

17/02/22 HR Committee 
Appeals 
Refresher 1-1 

1 pending pending 

 

9. Cumbria Monitoring Officers Group 
 
The Cumbria and Lancaster Monitoring Officers meet as required, and correspond to 
discuss key issues. Contacts include Monitoring Officers from both National Parks and 
the Police Authority, as well as a representative from CALC. This has seen the 
adoption by other Cumbrian Councils of the new Code of Conduct.  

 

Page 20



Appendix 1 

10. Ombudsman Cases – April 2020 – 2021 
 

The Annual Review Letter from the Ombudsman was reported on 11 October 2021 
 
As highlighted in last year’s annual report, the Ombudsman has changed the way that it reports 
on complaints. 

 

There is a distinction between those reports where the Ombudsman produces a formal public 
interest report and other categories of recording decisions where there may be fault on the 
part of a Council but that it does not meet the requirement for formal reporting. 

 
There have been no public interest reports received. Since April 2020 to April 2021 zero 
decisions had been upheld or recorded as maladministration and injustice at pre-report stage 
against the Council as the Ombudsman did not find any evidence that the Council had acted 
within maladministration As a comparison 53% of decisions for similar councils are upheld. 

 
The Committee awaits the receipt of  the 2021/2022 review. 
 

The Committee has also had an overview of the Council Internal Complaints and Customer 
Contacts 
 

 11.Constitution of Standards Committee 
 
The membership and functions of the Standards Committee are in accordance with the 
Constitution and relevant guidance. The Committee can co-opt up to two Parish Members. It 
currently has one Parish Member co-opted onto the Committee with nonvoting rights, and 
seven District Members. An invitation has been extended to the new Chair of CALC to take up the 
other Parish Council co-optee position on the Committee. The Independent Person is able to 
attend and advise the Committee as required. 

 

Membership during 2021/2022 was as follows:- 

 
Councillors: 
 
District Councillors  
 

  Tom Harvey  
Chris Hogg 
(Chairman)  
John 
Holmes  
Pete McSweeney 
Matt Severn  
(Vice Chair) 
Peter Thornton  
Shirley- Anne Wilson  

 

Parish Councillors: 
 
Peter Smillie (Member of Arnside Parish Council and Nominated Co-optee by South 
Lakeland District Association of Local Councils) 

 
 

1. Dispensations 
 

The current dispensations are in place and accessible to view on the Council’s website - 
Councillors’ Register of Interests. 

 

Page 21

https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/your-council/councillors-and-decisions/councillors/councillors-register-of-interests/#gsc.tab%3D0


Appendix 1 

2. Budget 
 
There is limited budget provision to assist in supporting any investigations and training with 
regard to standards issues.  

 

3. Future Activity 
 

Work Programme: 
 

The Work Programme for 2022/23 will include standing annual items but will evolve as 
necessary throughout the year to take account of any developing issues pertaining to 
standards.

Page 22



Appendix 1 
Standards Committee Work Programme April 

2022- May 2023 
April 
2022 

May 
2022 

June 
2022 

Sept 
2022 

Dec 
2022 

February 
2023 

Marc
h 
2023 

Comments 

 

Standards Committee Training for new 
Members of Standards Committee and 

refresher training offered to existing 
members 

  √      

 

Inspect Registers of Interests for District and 
Parish Councillors 

  √   √   

 

Consider and adjudicate Dispensation 
Requests 

       As required 
and update the 
website 

Continuation of a Council wide Governance and 
Accountability working 

Group 

 √      To meet 
monthly 

Review of website √ √ √ √ √ √ √ √ 

Review of member officer protocol     √   As part of the 
review of the 
constitution 

Review of expiration of all dispensations   √      

Receive Annual Ombudsman Report from the 
LGO 

   √     

Prepare Annual Report for Full Council      √   

 

Publicise Role and Work of Standards 
Committee, and the Effectiveness of Standards 

Committee through the Annual Report to full 
Council 

       On going 

Continue to raise the profile of the Standards 
Committee with Parish and Town Councils 

       All year 

 

Conduct yearly review of complaints, 
comments and compliments procedure 

    

 
√ 

    

 Readiness for Vesting Day and the transfer of 
functions to the Westmorland and Furness Council.  

   √ √ √ √  

Page 23



Appendix 1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

If you would like a copy of this 

document in another format such 

as large print, Braille, audio or in   a 

different language, please call 

01539 733333 or email customer 

services@southlakeland.gov.uk 

Page 24

mailto:services@southlakeland.gov.uk


South Lakeland District Council 

Standards Committee 

Monday, 14 March 2022 

Code of Conduct Complaints 

 

Portfolio:   Finance and Resources Portfolio Holder 

Report from:  Monitoring Officer 

Report Author: Linda Fisher – Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist 
(Monitoring Officer) 

Wards:  (All Wards); 

Forward Plan: N/A 

Links to Council Plan Priorities: The work of the Standards Committee contributes towards 
all Council prioritites, Working across boundaries, Delivering a balanced community, A fairer 
South Lakeland, Addressing the climate emergency  

 

1.0 Expected Outcome and Measures of Success 

1.1 That the Standards Committee notes the report of the Monitoring Officer with regards 
to complaints under the Council’s Standards Arrangement from October 2021. 

2.0 Recommendation 

2.1 It is recommended that Standards Committee note the report. 

3.0 Background and Proposals 

3.1 Under the Council’s Standards Arrangements the Monitoring Officer reviews any  

complaints received about District or Parish/Town Councillors in respect of the  
Member’s Code of Conduct, and after consultation with the Independent Person,  
takes a decision as to whether it merits formal investigation.  
 

3.2  Members were last updated in October 2021. During the period from the October 
2021 Standards Committee to the date of writing this report, 5 complaints have been 
progressed and files closed with no further action, as noted in Appendix 1. During the 
period from the October Standards Committee to the date of this report, one further 
complaint was received that did not meet the threshold to proceed with a Code of 
Conduct complaint. Presently there is 1 active complaint at the date of writing this 
report. An updated Appendix 1 is attached.  

 
4.0 Appendices Attached to this Report 

Appendix No. Name of Appendix 

1 Code of Conduct Table  

5.0 Consultation 

5.1 Not applicable  

Page 25

Item No.7



6.0 Alternative Options 

6.1 There are no alternative options to the report. The report is to note only. 

7.0 Implications 

Financial, Resources and Procurement 

7.1 External support was utilised on one Parish Council complaint the remainder dealt 

with by the Monitoring Officer. These costs can be accommodated within existing 
budgets. 

 
Human Resources 

7.2 No issues identified. 

Legal 

7.3 The Council is required to ensure that it accords with the requirements of the  

Localism Act 2011.  
 

Health and Sustainability Impact Assessment 

7.4 Have you completed a Health and Sustainability Impact Assessment? No 

7.5 If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: Not 
applicable  

7.6 Summary of Health and Sustainability Impacts 

 Positive Neutral Negative Unknown 

Environment 
and Health 

Greenhouse gases 
emissions 

 x   

 Air Quality  x   

 Biodiversity  x   

 Impacts of Climate 
Change 

 x   

 Reduced or zero 
requirement for energy, 
building space, materials 
or travel 

 x   

 Active Travel  x   

Economy and 
Culture 

Inclusive and sustainable 
development 

 x   

 Jobs and levels of pay  x   

 Healthier high streets  x   

 Culture, creativity and 
heritage 

 x   

Housing and 
Communities 

Standard of housing  x   

 Access to housing  x   

 Crime  x   

 Social connectedness  x   

Page 26



Equality and Diversity 

7.7 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No 

7.8 If you have not completed an Impact Analysis, please explain your reasons: Not 
applicable  

7.9 Summary of Equality and Diversity impacts 

Please indicate: P = Positive impact; 0 = Neutral; N = Negative; Enter “X” 

Age P  0 x N  

Disability P  0 x N  

Gender reassignment (transgender) P  0 x N  

Marriage & civil partnership P  0 x N  

Pregnancy & maternity P  0 x N  

Race/ethnicity P  0 x N  

Religion or belief P  0 x N  

Sex/gender P  0 x N  

Sexual orientation P  0 x N  

Armed forces families P  0 x N  

Rurality P  0 x N  

Socio-economic disadvantage P  0 x N  

 

Risk Management Consequence Controls required 

That the Council fails 

to comply with the 

requirements of the 

Localism Act 2011 

Challenge to the Council’s 

governance arrangements 

Ensure appropriate arrangements are 
in place to ensure compliance with the 
legislation.  
 

Contact Officers 

Linda.Fisher@southlakeland.gov.uk 

Tracking Information 

Signed off by Date sent Date Signed off 

Section 151 Officer 16/02/2022 22/02/2022 

Monitoring Officer Report Author  N/A 

CMT 16/02/2022 24/02/2022 

 

Circulated to Date sent 

Lead Specialist N/A 

Human Resources Lead Specialist N/A 

Communications Team N/A 

Leader N/A 

Committee Chairman N/A 

Portfolio Holder N/A 

Page 27

mailto:Linda.Fisher@southlakeland.gov.uk


Circulated to Date sent 

Ward Councillor(s) N/A 

Committee 14/03/2022 

Executive (Cabinet) N/A 

Council N/A 

 

Page 28



Code of Conduct 
complaints update 
- since October 
2021 Complaint 
from 
Councillor/officer/  
member of the 
public 

Date 
received 

Nature of 
complaint 

Complaint 
against 

File 
closed? 

Local 
Resolution 

Outcome  

Member of the 
public 
 

25 
January 
2021 

Standards 
of 
Conduct 

Parish 
Councillor 

Yes Yes No further 
action 

Member of the 
public 
 

18 
August 
2021  

Standards 
of 
Conduct  

Parish 
Councillor  

Yes  Yes  No further 
action  

Member of the 
public 
 

31 
August 
2021  

Standards 
of 
Conduct 

Parish 
Councillor 

Yes  Yes No further 
action 

Member of the 
public 

10 Sept 
2021 

Standards 
of 
Conduct 

Parish 
Councillor 

Yes  Yes No further 
action 

Member of the 
public 
 

10 Sept 
2021 

Standards 
of 
Conduct 

Parish 
Councillor 

Yes Yes No further 
action 

Member of the 
public  

19 
January 
2022 

Standards 
of 
Conduct 

Parish 
Councillor 

TBC TBC TBC 

 
  
 

      

 

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 30



South Lakeland District Council 

Standards Committee 

Monday, 14 March 2022 

Review of Dispensations re Public Participation 

 

Portfolio:   Not applicable  

Report from:  Monitoring Officer 

Report Author: Linda Fisher, – Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist 
(Monitoring Officer) 

Wards:  (All Wards); 

Forward Plan: Not applicable 

Links to Council Plan Priorities: The proposals in this report are relevant to the following 
Council Plan Priorities: Working across boundaries; Delivering a balanced community; A fairer 
South Lakeland; Addressing the climate emergency 

 

1.0 Expected Outcome and Measures of Success 

1.1 That the use of dispensations is reviewed which enables Members to utilise the 
General Public Participation and Public Participation at Planning Committee Schemes 
and that the dispensations continue for a further one year period. 

2.0 Recommendation 

2.1 It is recommended that Standards Committee:- 

 (1) Approve the continuation of the existing dispensations for a period of 
one year as detailed in this report 

 

3.0 Background and Proposals 

3.1 Prior to the introduction of the Localism Act 2011 there was provision for Members who 
had what under the Code of Conduct at that time what was referred to as a “prejudicial interest” 
to utilise the Public Participation Scheme. Under the new arrangements, no such provision 
was made and the Standards Committee considered the issue locally as part of its overview 
review of the Council’s Standards arrangements. 
 
3.2 Under section 33 of the Localism Act 2011 dispensations may be granted in certain 
circumstances, which include where it is considered necessary in the interests of persons 
living in the authority’s areas, or where the council considers that it is otherwise appropriate to 
grant a dispensation where a member has a disclosable pecuniary interest in a matter. 
 
3.3 In April 2016 the Standards Committee was asked to approve a dispensation for 
Members and Co-opted members to enable them to utilise the General Public Participation 
scheme, for a period of 2 years, the period of 2 years to enable the effect of the dispensation 
to be assessed. At the same meeting a 2 year dispensation was also approved for similar 
proposals in relation to the Public Participation scheme applicable to Planning Committee 
with an associated bi-annual review. A further report was presented to the Standards 

Page 31

Item No.8



Committee in April 2018 to approve the continuation of the dispensations for a period of 4 
years.   In the April 2018 report, the dispensations were combined into the following: 
 

Councillor/ Co-optee Dispensation 

All Current Members of South Lakeland 
District Council and Co-optees on Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee and Lake 
Administration Committee 

In circumstances when a member has a 
Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in relation to 
an agenda item, to make representations 
under the General Public Participation 
Scheme and Public Participation at 
Planning Committee Scheme. Such 
dispensation does not apply to the 
remainder of the agenda item and upon 
completing his/her address the member will 
be required to leave the chamber for the 
remainder of the agenda item. 

 
3.4 The Standards Committee also considered those Members who due to private or ward 
activities had to declare bias and predetermination and agreed that it should follow that 
members caught by the rules of bias and pre-determination should be able to use the 
General Public Participation and Public Participation at Planning Committee Schemes in the 
same way as Members who have a Disclosable Pecuniary interest in an agenda item. 
 
3.5 Following approval by Council in May 2016 provisions were set out in the Constitution 
and General Public Participation and Public Participation at Planning Committee Schemes  
detailing the dispensations and indicating that a Member who would have to otherwise leave 
the chamber due to a disclosable pecuniary interest or bias and pre-determination may 
utilise the relevant scheme in the same way. 
 
3.6 Since the dispensations were introduced there is evidence of them having been used at 
Planning Committee which has enabled Members to put forward representations where they 
would not have been able to do so without dispensation. 
 
3.7 Standards Committee is asked to consider the review of the use of dispensations and if 
they consider it appropriate to continue them for a further period of 1 years. 

4.0 Consultation 

4.1 Party Leaders and the Independent person have agreed to the extension of the 
dispensation for a further year.  

 
5.0 Alternative Options 

5.1 Not to continue with the dispensations. This is not recommended as the proposals 
within this report enable Members who would be excluded from the public 
participation process, to make representations.   

 
6.0 Implications 

Financial, Resources and Procurement 

6.1 No financial implications. 

Human Resources 

6.2 No staffing implications. 

Page 32



Legal 

6.3.1 The Localism Act 2011 sets out criteria which can be applied in considering  
dispensations and the following are relevant to this case:- 
(1) That it is considered that the granting of the dispensation is in the interests of the 

persons living in the authority’s area; or 
(2) That it is considered that it is otherwise appropriate to grant a dispensation. 

 
6.3.2 There is no legal requirement to have Public Participation schemes. It is considered 

desirable however to have similar treatment of Members with bias and  predetermination 
as compared to members with a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in terms of eligibility for 
the public participation scheme. 

 
Health and Sustainability Impact Assessment 

6.4 Have you completed a Health and Sustainability Impact Assessment? No 

6.5 If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: The 
proposal has no significant social economic or environmental impacts. 

6.6 Summary of Health and Sustainability Impacts 

 Positive Neutral Negative Unknown 

Environment 
and Health 

Greenhouse gases 
emissions 

 X   

 Air Quality  X   

 Biodiversity  X   

 Impacts of Climate 
Change 

 X   

 Reduced or zero 
requirement for energy, 
building space, materials 
or travel 

 X   

 Active Travel  X   

Economy and 
Culture 

Inclusive and sustainable 
development 

 X   

 Jobs and levels of pay  X   

 Healthier high streets  X   

 Culture, creativity and 
heritage 

 X   

Housing and 
Communities 

Standard of housing  X   

 Access to housing  X   

 Crime  X   

 Social connectedness  X   

Equality and Diversity 

6.7 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No  

6.8 If you have not completed an Impact Analysis, please explain your reasons:  

Page 33



The recommendations in this report do not in themselves have any significant implications 
for Equality and Diversity and therefore no Equality and Diversity Impact Assessment is 
considered necessary. 
 
6.9 Summary of Equality and Diversity impacts 

Please indicate: P = Positive impact; 0 = Neutral; N = Negative; Enter “X” 

Age P  0 X N  

Disability P  0 X N  

Gender reassignment (transgender) P  0 X N  

Marriage & civil partnership P  0 X N  

Pregnancy & maternity P  0 X N  

Race/ethnicity P  0 X N  

Religion or belief P  0 X N  

Sex/gender P  0 X N  

Sexual orientation P  0 X N  

Armed forces families P  0 X N  

Rurality P  0 X N  

Socio-economic disadvantage P  0 X N  

 

Risk Management Consequence Controls required 

That not to permit participation 
as identified in the report is 
perceived as being unduly 
restrictive 

Members and their 

constituents are aggrieved 

at the restrictions on 

Members; ability to utilise 

the General Public 

Participation Scheme and 

Public Participation at 

Planning Scheme 

Implementation of the 

proposals set out within 

this report. 

Contact Officers 

Linda Fisher: Linda.Fisher@southlakeland.gov.uk 

Background Documents Available 

 

Name of Background document Where it is available 

Standards Committee Minute S/17  

17 April 2018 

https://democracy.southlakeland.gov.uk/ieListDocume

nts.aspx?CId=139&MId=4357&Ver=4  

Standards Committee Minute S/20 

19 April 2016 

https://democracy.southlakeland.gov.uk/ieListDocume

nts.aspx?CId=139&MId=3817&Ver=4  

Tracking Information 

Signed off by Date sent Date Signed off 

Section 151 Officer N/A - 

Page 34

https://democracy.southlakeland.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=139&MId=4357&Ver=4
https://democracy.southlakeland.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=139&MId=4357&Ver=4
https://democracy.southlakeland.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=139&MId=3817&Ver=4
https://democracy.southlakeland.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=139&MId=3817&Ver=4


Monitoring Officer Report Author Report Author 

CMT N/A - 

 

Circulated to Date sent 

Lead Specialist N/A 

Human Resources Lead Specialist N/A 

Communications Team N/A 

Leader N/A 

Committee Chairman N/A 

Portfolio Holder N/A 

Ward Councillor(s) N/A 

Committee N/A 

Executive (Cabinet) N/A 

Council N/A 

 

 

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 36



Standards Committee Work Programme October 
2021- March 2023 

March 
2022 

October 2022 March 2023 Comments 

Standards Committee Training for new Members of 
Standards Committee and refresher training offered 

to existing members 
 

 √   

Newly Elected District Councillors Induction 
Training 

 

 √  Annually 

Review of Officers and                  Members Gifts and 
Hospitality 

 √   

Refresher Code of Conduct Training/How To be an 
Effective Member for District Councillors 

   Annually 

 
Inspect Registers of Interests for District and Parish 

Councillors 
 

 √  Annually 

 
Consider and adjudicate Dispensation 

Requests 
 

 

   As required and update 
the website  

Establishment of a Council wide Governance and 
Accountability working 

Group 

   To meet monthly  

Review of website 
 
 

 √ √ √ 

Review of member officer protocol 
 

 √ √ As part of the review of 
the constitution  

Review of expiration of all dispensations  √ √  

Receive Annual Ombudsman Report from the LGO  
 

 √   

Prepare Annual Report for Full Council  
 

√  √  

  
Publicise Role and Work of Standards Committee, and 
the Effectiveness of Standards Committee through the 

Annual Report to full Council 
 

   On going 

Continue to raise the profile of the Standards Committee 
with Parish and Town Councils 

 

   All year  

Conduct yearly review of complaints, comments and 
compliments procedure 

 

 √   

 

P
age 37

Item
 N

o.9



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 38


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	6 Annual Report 2021/2022
	Annual Report 2021/2022  - Appendix 1

	7 Code of Conduct Complaints
	Code of Conduct Complaints  - Appendix 1

	8 Review of Dispensations - Public Participation
	9 Standards Committee Work Programme

